

201 South Grand Avenue East Springfield, Illinois 62763-0002

Telephone: (217) 782-1200

TTY: (800) 526-5812

MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 14, 2008

TO: Members of the Medicaid Advisory Committee

FROM: Theresa A. Eagleson, Administrator

Division of Medical Programs

RE: Medicaid Advisory Committee (MAC) Meeting

The next meeting of the Medicaid Advisory Committee is scheduled for May 16, 2008. The meeting will be held via videoconference from 10 a.m. to 12 p.m. Those attending in Springfield will meet at 201 South Grand Avenue East, 3rd floor Video-conference Room B. Those attending in Chicago will meet at 401 South Clinton, 7th floor Video-conference Room.

The following meeting material has been posted to the department's Web site: the agenda for the May 16, 2008 meeting, the draft minutes and attachments from the March 21, 2008 meeting and the Ethics Training for Appointees and Employees of State of Illinois Boards packet. The ethics filing done in January was for calendar year 2007. This filing is for calendar year 2008. MAC members are asked to read the ethics-training document and bring the signed "Acknowledgment of Participation Form" to the meeting on the 16thth or return by facsimile to the attention of Carla Lawson at 217-558-1317.

The current meeting material has been sent to the committee members electronically. Interested parties can access the meeting information by going to: http://www.hfs.illinois.gov/mac/ or http://www.hfs.illinois.gov/mac/ or

In order to receive information on future MAC meetings, you will need to register to receive e-mail notification when information is posted to the MAC Web page. To register to receive the MAC e-mail notifications go to: http://www.hfs.illinois.gov/mac/notify.html

If you have any questions, or need to be reached during the meeting, please call 217-782-2570.

E-mail: hfs.webmaster@illinois.gov Internet: http://www.hfs.illlinois.gov/

MEDICAID ADVISORY COMMITTEE

401 S. Clinton
7th Floor Video-conference Room
Chicago, Illinois
and
201 South Grand Avenue East
3rd Floor Video-conference Room
Springfield, Illinois

May 16, 2008 10 a.m. - 12 p.m.

AGENDA

- I. Call to Order
- II. Introductions
- III. Review of March 21, 2008 Meeting Minutes
- IV. Administrator's Report
 - 2008 Legislative Session Update
- V. Old Business
 - All Kids and FamilyCare Update
 - PCCM Update
 - DM Update
 - Medicare Part D Update
 - Veterans Care Update
 - Access to Benefits and Services Task Force Update
- VI. New Business
 - Ethics Training
 - Open to Committee
- VII. Subcommittee Reports
 - Long Term Care (LTC) Subcommittee No Report
 - Dental Policy Review (DPR) Committee No Report
 - Public Education Subcommittee No Report
 - Pharmacy Subcommittee No Report
- VIII. Adjournment

401 S. Clinton Street, Chicago, Illinois 201 S. Grand Avenue East, Springfield, Illinois

Members Present

Jill Fraggos for Susan Hayes Gordon Robyn Gabel, IMCHC Diane Coleman, PCIL Robert Anselmo, R.Ph. Debra Kinsey, DCFS Gerri Clark, DSCC

HFS Staff

James Parker Lynne Thomas Barbara Ginder Amy Wallace Aundrea Hendricks James Monk

Members Absent

Eli Pick, Chairman
John Schlofrock, Barton Mgt.
David Carvalho, IDPH
Pedro A. Poma, M.D.
Kim Mitroka, Christopher Rural Health
Neil Winston, M.D.
Myrtis Sullivan, DHS
Richard Perry, D.D.S.

Interested Parties

Michael Lafond, Abbott
Mandy Ungrittanon, Quest Diagnostics
Robin Scott, CDPH
Robert Robinson, Hemophilia Foundation of Illinois
Kathy Bovid, Bristol Myers Squibb
Gregory Warren, Astra Zeneca
Charlene Guldbrandsen, Grow in Illinois

I. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 10:17 a.m. Robyn Gabel chaired the meeting.

II. Introductions

Attendees in Chicago and Springfield introduced themselves. Diane Coleman participated via teleconference call.

III. Review of the Minutes

The November 2007 and January 2008 minutes were approved.

IV. Administrator's Report

James Parker, Deputy Administrator for Operations, provided the report.

1) **2008 Budget update.** During this legislative session, the Governor introduced his fiscal year 2009 budget. For Medicaid, this is a maintenance budget in that it doesn't include any new program expansions. It does include the FamilyCare expansion that was effective December 1, 2007.

There are separate proposals submitted asking for medical benefit expansion such as the Illinois Covered Assist program. There are also bills asking for a variety of things, such as rate increases for pediatric specialists, dental services, and ambulance services, among other issues.

- 2) A hospital assessment supplemental bill that authorizes a third payment from the current (FY08) plan is very close to passage.
- 3) Based on federal law, effective April 1st, providers are to use tamper-resistant prescription pads. The department is prepared to comply with this law.

V. Old Business

1) All Kids and FamilyCare update. Enrollment statistics through January 31, 2008 were provided. Lynne Thomas, chief of the Bureau of All Kids, stated that enrollment activities are running smoothly with applications being process at about 18 days.

Ms. Thomas stated that the volume of applications is increasing. The All Kids Unit receives about 54% from the community and 46% of applications from AKAA (All Kids Application Agents). This mix is the result of getting a large number of web applications from the community. There is about a 50/50 split on receipt of hardcopy and web applications.

2) Primary Care Case Management (PCCM) activity. Mr. Parker reported that the contractor, Automated Health Systems (AHS) must make patient histories available to providers via an electronic site. The patient history will include diagnosis, treatment and prescription information.

The department is seeking an amendment to allow for the display of all psychotropic prescriptions on the patient histories. Currently, HFS is not allowed to post medical information regarding substance abuse, HIV services or mental health prescriptions. There are about 3.7 million psychotropic prescriptions that are not shown in the system. As a reference point, our patient histories show 2.9 million prescriptions for heart drugs.

Our research shows that about 14% of patients taking psychotropic drugs are getting multiple prescriptions from 2 or more providers. Posting the prescription information should help providers to better serve patients.

The patient histories will essentially be in real time. The provider will be able to see if there are duplicate prescriptions from different providers. They may see patient compliance in having prescriptions filled. For example, a prescription for hypertension may be filled once and then stopped or perhaps the patient never has the prescription filled.

Robert Anselmo asked if the department had plans to allow pharmacies to bill for immunizations.

Mr. Parker stated that pharmacies can bill for influenza and pneumonia immunizations and an administrative fee is paid. Pharmacies may not bill for standard childhood vaccines.

The department is on the verge of establishing performance incentives for primary care providers whose patient histories exceed established health indicators. We have been working closely with the PCCM/DM stakeholder group on these indicators. The department has proposed funding in the FY09 budget to reward doctors for meeting benchmarks for preventive care and quality of care. There are 5 indicators, 4 of which are HEDIS standards. These indicators are:

Number of developmental screenings Control of persistent asthma Hemoglobin A1c tests for diabetics Mammography for age appropriate women

Bonus payment will be based on the number of patients that exceed the 50th percentile of the national average. The payment will likely be a minimum of \$20 per patient exceeding the benchmark.

Robyn Gabel shared that Access Community Health Network uses an incentive system and that the department may want to look at their experience.

Jill Fraggos asked when the Illinois Health Connect PCP referral requirement would be rolled out.

Mr. Parker stated that he did not see the department doing this in the next couple of months. He shared that there is not yet a consensus on how the referral edit will work. One group wants the referral edit on the front end and another group wants it at the back end. He added that we anticipate several months of editing before the department turns on the referral system and rejects non-referred billing.

- 3) Disease Management (DM). No report for this period.
- **4) Medicare Part D.** Mr. Parker provided the update on Medicare Part D and Illinois Cares Rx. He stated that Illinois Cares Rx has about 180,000 members. Of these, 98% have Medicare.

The department is looking at persons that were covered last year but not this year. We are reaching out to them and are able to apply on their behalf for LIS (Low Income Subsidy).

Robert Anselmo complimented the department on the wraparound procedure that gives a new recipient number (RIN) for billing when the submitted number does not process. The procedure saves time, as it is not necessary for the pharmacist to call for the new RIN.

- 5) Veterans Care. No report for this period.
- 6) Access to Benefits and Services Task Force. No report for this period.
- VI. New Business. None for this period.
- VII. Subcommittee Reports

Long Term Care (LTC). No report for this period.

Dental Policy Review (DPR). No report for this period.

Pharmacy Subcommittee. No report for this period.

Public Education Subcommittee. No report for this period.

VIII. The meeting was adjourned at 10:54 a.m. The next MAC meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2008.

Medicaid Advisory Committee March 21, 2008 All Kids/FamilyCare Report

Enrollment

- Enrollment data is attached. Enrollment data as of 01/31/08:
 - a. 1,341,840 All Kids Assist (Up to 133% of FPL)
 - b. 70,999 All Kids Rebate, Share, Premium Level 1 (133% to 200% of FPL)
 - c. 62,980 All Kids expansion children
 - d. 6,345 Moms and babies expansion (133% to 200% of FPL)
 - e. 379,722 Pre-expansion parents (up to approx. 35% of FPL)
 - f. 159,121 FamilyCare expansion parents

Web-based application capability

We implemented our web-based application statewide on August 11, 2005. Since then, we have received a total 130,390 web apps: 86,306 from the general public and 44,084 from AKAA's.

	7/31/2007		8/31/2007		9/30/2007		10/31/2007		11/30/2007		12/31/2007	1/31/2008
·	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Current	Current
	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers						
Pre-expansion children	1,206,194	1,212,445		1,223,483	1,221,195			1,233,123	1,230,389	1,236,269		1,241,135
All Kids Phase I	91,449	92,004	93,485	93,785	94,643	95,155	96,569	96,842	97,569	98,012	99,128	100,705
All Kids Phase II	62,740	62,680	62,682	62,655	62,759	62,694	63,036	63,052	62,938	62,897	63,296	63,157
All Kids Phase III	6,963	6,946	7,061	7,044	7,309	7,298	7,496	7,486	7,631	7,611	7,610	7,842
All Kids Expansion	56,262	56,653	58,015	58,015	59,029	59,029	60,655	60,677	61,388	61,456	62,094	62,980
Moms and Babies Exp	5,693	5,835	5,924	6,004	5,890	6,029	6,155	6,249	6,168	6,323	6,330	6,345
Pre-expansion parents	366,648	370,447	371,580	373,640	370,628	374,565	374,633	376,678	373,832	377,633	377,085	379,722
FamilyCase Phase I	36,561	36,714	36,956	37,049	36,817	36,965	36,784	36,860	36,417	36,558	36,586	36,219
FamilyCare Phase II	39,285	39,584	39,986	40,181	39,641	39,942	39,758	39,930	39,425	39,728	39,481	39,236
FamilyCare Phase III	59,326	59,850	60,613	60,899	60,673	61,167	61,797	62,111	61,849	62,322	62,839	62,855
FamilyCare Phase IV	19,438	19,459	19,607	19,619	19,774	19,783	20,151	20,159	20,166	20,163	20,573	20,811
TOTAL	1,950,559	1,962,617	1,975,900	1,982,374	1,978,358	1,989,727	1,996,936	2,003,167	1,997,772	2,008,972	2,011,483	2,021,007
Children	1,423,608	1,430,728	1,441,234	1,444,982	1,444,935	1,451,276	1,457,658	1,461,180	1,459,915	1,466,245	1,468,589	1,475,819
Parents	526,951	531,889	534,666	537,392	533,423	538,451	539,278	541,987	537,857	542,727	542,894	545,188
	7/31/2007		8/31/2007		9/30/2007		10/31/2007		11/30/2007		12/31/2007	1/31/2008
•	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Previous	Current	Current	Current
	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers	Numbers						
All Kids Assist	1,297,643	1,304,449	1,313,476	1,317,268	1,315,838	1,322,255	1,326,471	1,329,965	1,327,958	1,334,281	1,335,589	1,341,840
All Kids Rebate, Share, Premium Level 1	69,703	69,626	69,743	69,699	70,068	69,992	70,532	70,538	70,569	70,508	70,906	70,999
All Kids Expansion	56,262	56,653	58,015	58,015	59,029	59,029	60,655	60,677	61,388	61,456	62,094	62,980
Moms and Babies Expansion	5,693	5,835	5,924	6,004	5,890	6,029	6,155	6,249	6,168	6,323	6,330	6,345
Pre-expansion Parents	366,648	370,447	371,580	373,640	370,628	374,565	374,633	376,678	373,832	377,633	377,085	379,722
FamilyCare Parent Expansion	154,610	155,607	157,162	157,748	156,905	157,857	158,490	159,060	157,857	158,771	159,479	159,121
Total	1,950,559	1,962,617	1,975,900	1,982,374	1,978,358	1,989,727	1,996,936	2,003,167	1,997,772	2,008,972	2,011,483	2,021,007

ETHICS TRAINING

for Appointees and Employees of State of Illinois Boards Subject to the Authority of the Office of Executive Inspector General for the Agencies of the Illinois Governor

Date of Issue: September 2007

(Not for use by other than State of Illinois employees, appointees or officials without the express prior consent of the Office of Executive Inspector General for the Agencies of the Illinois Governor)

Introduction/General Principles

All state employees and elected officials are expected to work on behalf of the state in a manner that always complies with laws, rules, regulations and policies. By doing so and by always acting with honesty and integrity they allow established values to guide their actions and decisions. That is what it means to follow the principles of *ethics*.

The actions and conduct of state employees and officials are essential to maintaining the public's trust in state government. Therefore, in addition to acting with honesty and integrity, state employees must always use state provided resources in the most productive and efficient way possible and only in support of the work of state government. They must avoid placing their personal or financial interests in conflict with those of the state. Furthermore, it is their duty to report any violation of laws, rules, regulations and policies that they become aware of as a state worker.

These same expectations apply to you as an employee or appointee of a state board, commission, authority or task force (i.e., a "state board"). The appointees to state boards and the state employees that support them are often called upon to make decisions with far-reaching economic and social consequences for the citizens of Illinois. As a result, it is essential that you become aware of laws, rules, regulations and policies that apply to your conduct as a state board employee or appointee.

Among the laws and rules that apply to you is the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430), which became law in December 2003. The Ethics Act applies to full-time, part-time, temporary and seasonal employees, as well as to appointees and state officials. It also applies to contract workers. For purposes of the Ethics Act, the term "state employee" is defined to include all appointees.

The Ethics Act contains rules to guide the conduct of state employees, appointees and officials. For example, as a state employee, you are restricted from accepting certain gifts from certain specific "prohibited" sources. There are also restrictions that prevent you from participating in specific political activities during your state workday, unless you use your vacation or personal leave time. In addition, the Ethics Act prohibits you from using state property or resources to conduct or support certain specific political activities. The text of the entire Ethics Act, is available at www.inspectorgeneral.illinois.gov

The information that follows is intended to make you aware of selected elements of the Ethics Act and other laws and rules that relate to the ethical conduct of state employees and appointees. In addition to becoming familiar with this material, it is important that you review the rules that may be specific to your state board. If you have questions concerning ethics-related matters, each state board has an Ethics Officer who can provide answers to you and who, by law, is there to provide guidance to you in the interpretation and implementation of the Ethics Act.

Executive Ethics Commission

Established in 2004, the Executive Ethics Commission, in conjunction with the Executive Inspectors General and the Attorney General, is responsible for the oversight of compliance, implementation and enforcement of the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act. The commission consists of nine commissioners, appointed on a bipartisan basis, and it exercises jurisdiction over all officers and employees of state agencies under the control of the six executive branch constitutional officers of the state. For further information about the Executive Ethics Commission, visit its Web site at www.eec.illinois.gov

Ethics Training (from Ethics Act, Section 5-10)

Like other state officials and employees, state board employees and appointees must complete ethics training on an annual basis.

Your state board will notify you and provide instructions to you concerning when and how to participate in annual ethics training (by carefully reading and reviewing the material in this package and signing the attached Acknowledgement form you are completing this training for the current year).

All new state board employees and appointees must complete ethics training within six months of their first day of employment or appointment.

Personnel Policies (from Ethics Act, Section 5-5)

State employees are required to follow the personnel policies of their state agency or state board. These policies must include elements related to:

- Work time requirements.
- Documentation of time worked/time sheets.
- Documentation for reimbursement for travel on official state business.
- Compensation.
- Earning and accrual of state benefits for those state employees eligible for benefits.

As a state board employee or appointee, you are expected to adhere to applicable board personnel policies.

Time Sheets (from Ethics Act, Section 5-5)

Each state agency, including each state board, shall require all employees to periodically submit time sheets. An employee's time sheet must document, to the nearest quarter hour, the time spent each day on official state business. Time sheets may be maintained on paper or in electronic format.

As a state board employee or appointee, you are expected to accurately report the hours that you work for the state, on a timely basis, as directed by your state board.

Conflicts of Interest

It is unethical for a state board employee or appointee, when performing actions on behalf of the state, to place his or her interests or those of a friend, relative or business associate, above those of the state. This is what is meant by a conflict of interest. Because of the importance of the functions of state boards, it is important that state board employees and appointees avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest.

Preexisting, potential or real conflicts of interest should be disclosed to the state by state board employees and appointees during the hiring/appointment process. For example, a prospective appointee to a state board with responsibility for regulating a certain industry should disclose current or prior relationships with a business that is subject to the board's regulation. Specifically, for example, it would be unethical for a prospective board appointee to not disclose a financial interest in a business subject to the board's oversight.

Potential or real conflicts of interest that arise or become known during the course of an individual's employment or appointment should be disclosed to the board's Ethics Officer, chairperson and "Executive Director" at the earliest opportunity, in order to determine the most appropriate course of action. This may include, for example, the need for a board appointee to recuse him or herself from certain board activities that are related to the conflict.

It is unethical for board employees and appointees to use information made available to them through their official duties and which is not generally known to the public, to benefit themselves, their friends, their family, or business associates. For example, it would be inappropriate for a board member to provide confidential information concerning a competitive bidding process for a state contract to a company owned by a personal friend that plans to submit a contract bid.

All state business decisions, regulatory findings and rulemaking, granting of licenses, etc., made by state boards must be made in the best interests of the state and must be made in a manner that is consistent with applicable laws, rules, regulations and policies. The personal interests of state board employees and appointees, or those of their family, friends or business associates must not be a consideration in such decisions.

Prohibited Political Activities (from Ethics Act, Section 5-15)

A state board employee or appointee cannot participate in any of the following activities while acting, or appearing to act, in his/her capacity as a board employee or appointee or while conducting state business. If a state employee elects to take part in any of these activities during normal work hours, then he or she must use vacation, personal or compensatory time off. A state board employee or appointee may never engage in any of these activities using state property and resources (such as state office telephones, state cell phones, photocopiers, or computers):

- Prepare for, organize, or participate in any political meeting, political rally, political demonstration, or other political event. For example, a board employee cannot send an email to fellow workers during work hours and/or using a state email account, encouraging them to attend a rally for a candidate for public office.
- Solicit contributions, including but not limited to purchasing, selling, distributing, or receiving payment for tickets for any political fundraiser, political meeting, or other political event. For example, it is unlawful for a state board employee to ask coworkers, during the workday, for donations in support of someone running for political office.
- Solicit, plan the solicitation of, or prepare any document or report regarding any thing of value intended as a campaign contribution.
- Plan, conduct, or participate in a public opinion poll in connection with a campaign for elective office or on behalf of a political organization for political purposes, or for or against any referendum question.
- Survey or gather information from potential or actual voters in an election to determine probable vote outcome in connection with a campaign for elective office or on behalf of a political organization, or for or against any referendum question. For example, it is unlawful for a state board employee, during his or her workday, to call potential voters on behalf of a candidate to find out whom they might vote for in an upcoming election.
- Assist at the polls on election day on behalf of any political organization, political candidate, or for or against any referendum question.
- Solicit votes on behalf of a candidate, political organization, or for or against any referendum question, or help in an effort to get voters to the polls or participate in a vote recount on behalf of a candidate or political organization.
- Initiate, prepare, circulate, review or file a petition on behalf of a candidate for elective office or for or against any referendum question.
- Make a contribution on behalf of any candidate for elective office. For example, it is unlawful for a state board employee to donate money, during work hours, to a coworker who is running for elective office.
- Prepare or review responses to candidates' questionnaires in connection with a campaign for elective office or on behalf of a political organization for political purposes.
- Distribute, prepare for distribution, or mail campaign literature, campaign signs, or other campaign material on behalf of any candidate for elective office or for or against any referendum question.
- Campaign for an elective office or for or against any referendum question.
- Manage or work on a campaign for elective office or for or against any referendum question.
- Serve as a delegate, alternate, or proxy to a political party convention.

Political Contributions on State Property (from Ethics Act,

Section 5-35)

Political campaign contributions cannot be intentionally solicited, accepted, offered or made on state property by public officials, by state employees, by candidates for elective office, by persons required to be registered under the Lobbyist Registration Act, or by any officers, employees, or agents of any political organization. These provisions do not apply to the residences of state officers and employees, except that no fundraising events shall be held at residences owned by the state or paid, in whole or in part, with state funds.

State property includes, for example, buildings or portions thereof that are owned or exclusively leased by the state. Therefore, it is unlawful for a state board employee or appointee to give or receive money for a candidate for public office while in state owned or leased office space or on state property.

Ban on Gifts from Prohibited Sources (from Ethics Act,

Section 10-10, 10-15 and 10-30)

In many instances, it is unlawful for state board employees or appointees to accept gifts that are offered to them in their capacity as state board employees or appointees or in the conduct of state business. Gifts may include, but are not limited to such things as free tickets to sporting events, cash, special discounted merchandise or services, food, drink and travel expenses.

A state board employee or appointee cannot intentionally solicit or accept a gift from certain individuals or entities that are defined by law as a "prohibited source." It is also unlawful for an employee or appointee's spouse or immediate family member living with him/her to accept a gift from a prohibited source. The following are prohibited sources and thus, a state board employee or appointee cannot generally accept a gift from:

- A person or entity (*a business*, *for example*) seeking official action from the state board employee/appointee or the employee/appointee's state board.
- A person or entity that does business or seeks to do business with the state board.
- A person or entity that conducts activities that are regulated by the employee/appointee of the state board or the board.
- A person or entity that has interests that may be substantially affected by the performance or non-performance of the state board employee or appointee.
- A person or entity that is a registered lobbyist.

There are 12 specific exceptions to this ban on gifts from prohibited sources, including:

- Opportunities, benefits and services available to the general public on the same conditions.
- Anything for which the employee or appointee pays market value.
- A lawful contribution under the Election Code or the Ethics Act or activities associated with a fundraising event in support of a political organization or candidate.
- Educational materials and missions (see note below *).
- Travel expenses for a meeting to discuss state business (see note below **).
- A gift from a relative.
- Anything provided on the basis of personal friendship, unless the employee or appointee has reason to believe that, under the circumstances, the gift was provided because of the official position of the employee or appointee and not because of the personal friendship.
- Food or drink that does not exceed \$75 per calendar day.
- Food, drink, lodging and transportation related to outside business or employment activities, if the benefits are customarily provided to others in similar circumstances and are not offered because of the recipient's official position.
- Intra-governmental or inter-governmental gifts (e.g. gifts between agency employees or between government employees).
- Bequests, inheritances, and other transfers at death.
- Any item or items from any one prohibited source during any calendar year that has a cumulative total value of less than \$100.

*Illinois Executive Ethics Commission Rule 1620.700 states that educational materials and missions are those that have a close connection to the recipient's state employment; predominately benefit the public and not the employee; and are approved by the employee's Ethics Officer in advance of the mission or receipt of the materials. If advance approval is not practicable, the missions and materials shall be reported to the Ethics Officer as soon as practicable and shall contain a detailed explanation of why approval could not be obtained in advance

**Illinois Executive Ethics Commission Rule 1620.700 further states that travel expenses of a meeting to discuss state business are those that have a close connection to the recipient's state employment; predominately benefit the public and not the employee; are for travel in a style and manner in character with the conduct of state business; and are approved by the employee's Ethics Officer in advance of the travel, if practicable. If advance approval is not practicable, the travel shall be reported to the Ethics Officer as soon as practicable and shall contain a detailed explanation of why approval could not be obtained in advance

If a state board employee or appointee receives an improper gift from a prohibited source, she or he can correct the situation and not be in violation of the ban if she or he promptly does any of the following:

- Returns the gift to the giver.
- Gives the gift to a not-for-profit organization, a 501(c)(3) organization.
- Gives an amount of equal value to a not-for-profit organization, 501(c)(3) organization.

Any gift that is intended to improperly influence an employee or appointee's official conduct must not be accepted. Questions that a state board employee or appointee may have related to gifts received in their capacity as a board employee/appointee or while conducting state business, should be referred to their board's Ethics Officer.

Prohibited Offer or Promise (from Ethics Act, Section 5-30)

A state board employee or appointee cannot promise anything of value related to state government, including but not limited to positions in state government, promotions, or salary increases, in consideration for a contribution to a political committee, political party or other entity that has as one of its purposes the financial support of a candidate for elective office.

For example, it is unlawful for a state board employee or appointee to offer an action by the state board, or to offer someone a state job or to offer an appointment to a state board, or to offer the award of a contract, in exchange for a political campaign donation. It is also unlawful, for example, for a state board employee or appointee, to offer a salary increase or promotion to another state employee in exchange for such a donation.

Revolving Door Restrictions (from Ethics Act, Section 5-45)

Contract Decision-makers

If within one year before leaving state service, a state employee or appointee participated personally and substantially in the decision to award state contracts with a cumulative value of over \$25,000 to a person, entity, its parent or subsidiary, that state employee or appointee cannot knowingly accept employment or receive compensation or fees for services from that person, entity, or parent or subsidiary for one year after leaving state service.

Regulatory or Licensing Decisions

If, within one year before leaving state service, a state employee or appointee made a regulatory or licensing decision that directly applied to a person, entity, its parent or subsidiary, that state employee or appointee cannot knowingly accept employment or receive compensation or fees for services from that person, entity, or parent or subsidiary for one year after leaving state service.

Application for Waiver of Revolving Door Restrictions

The Executive Ethics Commission ("EEC") may waive the revolving door restriction upon written request showing that the prospective employment or relationship did not affect the employee or appointee's prior regulatory or licensing decisions. EEC Rule 1620.610 provides instructions concerning the waiver application process.

Whistleblower Protection (from Ethics Act, Section 15-10)

An officer, state employee (or appointee), or state agency cannot lawfully take any retaliatory action against (such as reprimanding, firing, demoting, denying a promotion or suspending) a state employee for doing any of the following:

- Disclosing or threatening to disclose to a supervisor or to a public body an activity, policy or practice of any officer, member, state agency or other state employee that the state employee reasonably believes is in violation of a law, rule or regulation.
- Providing information or testifying about any violation of a law, rule or regulation by any officer, member, state employee, or state agency.
- Assisting or participating in a proceeding to enforce the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act.

If a state employee retaliates against another state employee for reporting a violation of law or assisting in an investigation then the individual taking the retaliatory action would be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge by their state agency, as well as potential administrative action by the Illinois Executive Ethics Commission for violating the Ethics Act. In addition, the employee subjected to the retaliatory action could file a lawsuit seeking compensation and other remedies as provided by law.

Appointments to Boards, Commissions, Authorities or Task Forces (from Ethics Act, Section 5-55)

Appointees to state boards, commissions, authorities and task forces have specific additional laws and rules that apply to them.

Registered Lobbyists (from Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/3.1)

A lobbyist is any person who communicates with an official of the executive or legislative branch of state government for the purpose of influencing executive, legislative or administrative action. Registered lobbyists are those individuals who meet certain criteria under the Lobbyist Registration Act and are therefore required to register with the Illinois Secretary of State.

A person required to register as a lobbyist cannot serve on a state board, commission, authority or task force authorized or created by state law or by executive order of the governor unless the individual falls under one of the following exceptions:

- The registered lobbyist is serving in an elective public office, whether elected or appointed to fill a vacancy.
- The registered lobbyist is serving on an advisory body that makes nonbinding recommendations to an
 agency of state government, but does not make binding recommendations or determinations or take any
 other substantive action.

Any registered lobbyist who serves on a board, commission, authority or task force under one of these exceptions must not take part in any decision that may affect one of his or her clients.

Spouses and immediate family members who are living with a person required to register as a lobbyist also cannot be appointed to a board, commission, authority or task force unless they fall under one of the exceptions above.

Holders of State Contracts (from Ethics Act, Section 5-55)

A person, his or her spouse, or any immediate family member living with that person, cannot serve on a board, commission, authority or task force if he or she meets any of the following criteria:

- The person has more than a 7 ½ percent interest in a state contract;
- The person, together with his or her spouse and immediate family members living with them, has more than a 15 percent interest in a state contract.

This ban does not apply if one of the following exceptions occurs:

- The contract in question is an employment contract.
- The person, the spouse, or the immediate family member is serving in an elective public office.
- The person, the spouse, or the immediate family member is serving on an advisory body that makes non-binding recommendations.

Any person who serves on a board, commission, authority or task force under one of these exceptions must not take part in any decision that may affect the contract in question.

Any individual appointed to a board, commission, authority or task force must disclose all contracts the individual has with the state.

State Contract-related Conflicts of Interest

An appointee to a board, commission, authority or task force cannot have or acquire a contract or a direct financial interest in a contract with the State that is related to the board, commission, authority or task force on which they sit.

Duty to Report Violations of Law, Rule, Regulation or Policy (from Administrative Order #6, 2003)

The Office of Executive Inspector General for the Agencies of the Illinois Governor ("OEIG") acts as an independent state agency whose function is to investigate fraud and abuse in state government. Specifically, the OEIG receives and investigates complaints of violations of law, rule or regulation or abuse of authority or other forms of misconduct by state employees or those doing business with the state.

Although, by law, the OEIG cannot accept anonymous complaints, the identity of a complainant shall be kept confidential unless disclosure is otherwise required by law, or unless the individual complainant consents to disclosure.

All state employees have a duty to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or policies that they become aware of in the course of their work for the state. By law, every state officer or employee in a state agency must promptly report to the Executive Inspector General any information concerning waste, fraud, conflicts of interest or abuse by another state officer, employee or vendor relating to his or her employment. The knowing failure of any officer or employee to so report shall be cause for discipline, up to and including discharge. The knowing provision of false information to the Executive Inspector General by any officer or employee shall be cause for discipline, up to and including discharge. These requirements are contained in Administrative Order #6, issued December 11, 2003.

All state employees, including those of state boards, have a duty to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or policies that they become aware of in the course of their work for the state. Appointees to state boards are also expected to report these same matters.

Report work-related non-emergency violations of law, rule or regulation, to the Office of Executive Inspector General for the Agencies of the Illinois Governor (OEIG) at its toll-free hotline: **866-814-1113** (or TDD 888-261-2734).

The OEIG's Web site is: www.inspectorgeneral.illinois.gov

Duty to Cooperate (from Ethics Act, Section 20-70 & Administrative Order #6, 2003)

State board employees and appointees who become involved in an investigation conducted by the Office of Executive Inspector General have a duty to cooperate. This means, among other things, that employees and appointees must participate in interviews as requested, tell the truth, not withhold information and respect the confidentiality of any investigation.

By law, every state agency, officer and employee shall cooperate with and provide assistance to the Executive Inspector General and her or his staff in the performance of any investigation. In particular, each state agency shall, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and the rules governing the conduct of Executive Inspectors General, make its premises, equipment, personnel, books, records, and papers readily available to the Executive Inspector General. The Executive Inspector General or his/her staff may enter upon the premises of any state agency at any time, without prior announcement, if necessary to the successful completion of an investigation. In the course of an investigation, the Executive Inspector General may question any officer or employee serving in, and any other person transacting business with the state agency, and may, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and the rules governing the conduct of Executive Inspectors General, inspect and copy any books, records, or papers in the possession of the state agency, including those made confidential by law, taking care to preserve the confidentiality of information contained in responses to questions or books, records, or papers that is made confidential by law.

The Executive Inspector General may compel any employee in a state agency to truthfully answer questions concerning any matter related to the performance of his or her official duties. If so compelled, no statement or other evidence derived there from may be used against such employee in any subsequent criminal prosecution other than for perjury or contempt arising from such testimony. The refusal of any employee to answer questions if compelled to do so shall be cause for discipline, up to and including discharge.

Law requires state board employees and appointees to cooperate with investigations of the OEIG. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment/appointment.

Ex Parte Communications

Ex Parte Communications in Rulemaking (from Administrative Procedures Act, 5 ILCS 100, Section 5-165)

Under the Illinois Administrative Procedures Act, an ex parte communication is defined as any written or oral communication by any person, during the rulemaking period, that provides or requests information of a material nature or makes a material argument regarding potential action concerning an agency's (or board's) general, emergency or peremptory rulemaking that is communicated to the head of the agency or an employee of the agency, and is:

- not made in a public forum
- not a statement limited to matters of procedure and practice
- not a statement made by a state employee to fellow employees of the same board or agency

An ex parte communication received by any agency or board, its head, or its employee must be immediately reported to the agency or board's Ethics Officer. The Ethics Officer must require that the communication be made a part of the record for the rulemaking proceeding and shall promptly file the communication with the Executive Ethics Commission.

These requirements under the Illinois Administrative Procedures Act apply to all state agencies and boards.

The intent of this section of the Administrative Procedures Act is to ensure that all parties who are interested in administrative rules under consideration by a state agency or board are made aware of communication that may occur outside of a public forum between the agency or board and other interested parties. Should you have any questions concerning whether or not a communication is subject to these ex parte rules, please contact your state board's Ethics Officer.

Ex Parte Communications on Regulatory, Quasi-Adjudicatory, Investment and Licensing Matters (from Ethics Act, Section 5-50)

These requirements of the Ethics Act that are related to ex parte communications apply to the following state agencies and boards:

Executive Ethics Commission Illinois Commerce Commission **Educational Labor Relations Board**

State Board of Elections Illinois Gaming Board

Health Facilities Planning Board

Industrial Commission Illinois Labor Relations Board Illinois Liquor Control Board Property Tax Appeal Board Illinois Racing Board

Illinois Purchased Care Review Board Department of State Police Merit Board

Motor Vehicle Review Board Prisoner Review Board

Merit Commission for the Secretary of State Merit Commission for the Office of the Comptroller

Court of Claims

Board of Review of the Department of Employment Security

Civil Service Commission

Department of Financial Professional Regulation and its Boards

Department of Public Health and its Licensing Boards

Pollution Control Board

State Employees' Retirement System Board of Trustees

Judge's Retirement System Board of Trustees

General Assembly Retirement System Board of Trustees

Illinois Board of Investment

State Universities Retirement System Board of Trustees Teachers' Retirement System Officers Board of Trustees

Personnel Review Board for the Treasurer

Under the Ethics Act, an ex parte communication is defined as any written or oral communication by any person that imparts or requests information of a material nature or makes a material argument concerning regulatory, quasiadjudicatory, investment or licensing matters pending before or under consideration by a state agency or board, that is:

- not made in a public forum
- not a statement limited to matters of procedure and practice
- not a statement made by a state employee to fellow employees of the same board or agency

An ex parte communication received by an agency or board, its head or an agency or board employee/appointee from an interested party or their representative, must be promptly made a part of the related official record. "Interested party," means a person or entity whose rights, privileges or interest are a subject of the matter under consideration by the agency or board.

An ex parte communication received by other parties must be reported to the agency or board's Ethics Officer. The Ethics Officer shall promptly require the communication to become a part of the record and will promptly file the communication with the Executive Ethics Commission.

The intent of this section of the Ethics Act is to ensure that all parties who are interested in certain matters under consideration by these boards are made aware of communication that may occur outside of a public forum between a board and other interested parties. Should you have any questions concerning whether or not a communication is subject to these ex parte rules, please contact your state agency or board's Ethics Officer.

Penalties

Penalties for violations of ethics-related laws, rules and policies by state employees and appointees are dependent upon the specific circumstances. Penalties may include administrative action up to and including termination of employment or appointment. In addition, the Executive Ethics Commission may levy administrative fines -- and illegal acts, such as bribery or theft, may result in criminal prosecution.

Ethics Questions or Concerns

State board employees and appointees who have questions or concerns about a work-related ethics issue should contact their board's Ethics Officer.

Ethical Obligations

The following are examples of actions or situations that must be avoided. Each represents unethical conduct:

1. An administrative assistant to a state board's Executive Director is instructed by his supervisor to run a personal errand for her during the workday.

It is wrong to engage in personal business that is unrelated to state or board business during scheduled work times.

2. A state board member accepts a gift of travel expenses in exchange for a favorable vote concerning a regulatory matter for which the board is responsible.

It is unethical and a violation of the law to accept a favor (monetary or other) in exchange for an official action. Such conduct may result in criminal prosecution.

3. During a meeting, a state board member votes in favor of a proposal to grant a state contract to a company owned by one of his/her close personal friends.

It is wrong for any state employee or appointee to take any official action that could be seen as placing personal interests or those of a family member, friend or business associate above those of the state.

4. A state board employee takes a 2-hour personal lunch break, however only reports a ½ hour break on his/her official time report.

It is unethical and unlawful to provide false information in a time report used as a basis for compensating a state board employee.

5. A temporary state board employee is directed by his/her supervisor to distribute political campaign literature to his state coworkers during the workday.

The State Officials and Employees Ethics Act prohibits this and certain other political activity from being done during a state employee's paid workday and/or using state facilities. The Ethics Act applies to full-time, part-time, temporary, seasonal and contract workers, including those of state boards.

6. A state board member uses his/her position as a board member to influence an applicant for a state license to do business with an associate of the board member -- as a condition for the board member's approval of the applicant's license.

It is unethical and unlawful for state board employees and appointees to exchange favors for an official action. Such conduct will result in discipline up to and including termination of employment/appointment and possible criminal prosecution.

7. The college-age son of a state board member receives a pair of tickets to a professional football game from an employee of a business that recently submitted an application requiring approval by his father's state board.

Acceptance of such a gift has the potential to represent either a real or perceived unethical act and thus should be strictly avoided or corrected, preferably by returning the gift.

8. A state board employee, who is responsible for performing analysis of information provided to a state board as part of a rulemaking process, accepts travel and lodging expenses for an out-of-town golf outing from a corporation that is a party to the rulemaking.

Acceptance of such a gift has the potential to be perceived as unethical and may in fact represent a violation of state law and board policy.



Acknowledgement of Participation in:

Ethics Training for Appointees and Employees of State of Illinois Boards

I have carefully read and reviewed the content of Ethics Training for Appointees and Employees of State of Illinois Boards, and I understand its subject matter.

Signature
Printed Name (first, middle initial, last
Month and Day of Birth
(i.e., birth date, excluding year)
Date
<u> </u>
State Board Name

(To be properly credited for participating in Ethics Training, please submit this form as directed by your state board)

September 2007